








August 24, 2004
To the Honorables: Mayor Tom Murphy

and Members of Pittsburgh City Council:


The Office of City Controller is pleased to present this Performance Audit of the Housing Authority of the City of Pittsburgh (HACP), conducted pursuant to the Controller’s own powers under Section 404(c) of the City’s Home Rule Charter.  This is the third performance audit of the Housing Authority by the Controller. The first was completed in 1990, the second audit in 2001.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY


In February of 2001 Pittsburgh City Council requested that the Controller’s Office conduct an independent audit of the Authority’s procurement and contract management practices.  The request followed an investigation by the Post Gazette and two federal audit reports that were critical of Authority operations and procedures. The Authority adopted a procurement policy handbook on July 18, 2000 to standardize and improve its procurement practices. 

 The 2001 performance audit concluded that overall, the Housing Authority was making steady progress in complying with its procurement procedures.  The Authority seemed to be working to correct many of the problems cited in previous audits such as excessive cost overruns, awarding contracts without adequate competition and insufficient board oversight. The Controller made recommendations for further improvement.

The main objective of this audit was to follow up the Authority’s progress in improving its procurement and contract management practices.  One hundred and thirty eighty contracts executed from July 2001 through September 2003 were reviewed. The total dollar value of contracts reviewed was $14,606,783.58. 


This audit found the Housing Authority contract file documentation much improved.  Several of the Controller’s recommendations from the 2001 audit were implemented.  Internal controls have minimized legal claims against the Authority.  Contract language has been crafted in such ways that contract modifications have declined. 

 The 2001 audit raised concerns about the cost effectiveness of a professional services contract for technical assistance when over one fourth of the consultant’s first invoice was for reimbursable expenses such as round-trip air fare from Puerto Rico. The Authority is no longer paying this contractor for travel, lodging or per diem expenses. 

However, a review of this contract’s Scope of Services and the actual services provided raises concerns about the role of the Authority’s in house staff.  In addition to providing technical assistance, the consultant appears to be performing work that is done routinely by departmental staff at a cost averaging over $100 per hour.  

Technical assistance can be valuable and necessary when the scope and type of work requires more expertise.  However, providing “day to day management, oversight and direction” is the job of departmental administrators.  Too much reliance on consultants can be bad for staff morale and not cost effective.

We commend the Authority for adopting a Mandatory Contract Review process to ensure that requisitioning departments do not exceed the contract limit for services or goods. When the Finance Department notes a 70 or 80% threshold of expenditure, the requisitioning department must reconcile all outstanding invoices before further procurements can be made from that contract.


We are pleased that the Authority has adopted some of our recommendations and is further improving the overall efficiency and effectiveness of its operations.









Sincerely,









Tom Flaherty

